RANCHO PAUMA MUTUAL WATER COMPANY ("RPMWC")
MINUTES OF THE
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HELD April 15, 2024

Directors Present: Chuck Bandy, Laurie Kariya, Bruce Knox, Linda Shoaff and Scott Shinner
Directors Absent: None
Also Present; Shareholder Charles Mathews; Jeff Pape of Dudek; Administrative Manager Amber

Watkins, and Office and Compliance Manager Kim Alvarado

1. Call to Order: Meeting was called to order at 3:29 p.m.by President Bandy. This meeting was held in person
and via Zoom.

2. Shareholder Comments: None.

3. Approval of Previous Minutes

a. Minutes of March 18, 2024 - Regular Meeting: Upon a motion by Kariya, seconded by Shoaff, the minutes
of the Regular Meeting held on March 18, 2024, were approved as presented by unanimous vote.

4. Administrative Manager’s Report: Watkins reported that the 2023 Consumer Confidence Report
(“CCR”) has been reviewed and approved by the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of
Drinking Water, a notice will be sent to all shareholders explaining how to obtain a copy of the report with
a future billing. Watkins also stated that the CCR information is also available on the RPMWC website
under the Consumer Info section located under the Transparency tab. Watkins proceeded to discuss the
After-Hours Water Emergency procedures followed by the Utility staff, noting that a portion of the calls are
determined to be issues pertaining to the customer’s side of the meter with a minimum of 2 hours overtime
($73 to $110) associated cost to RPMWC. Watkins suggested the Board might consider approving a flat fee
charge of $115 for the after-hours service calls to recuperate the labor costs and maintain a slight margin for
wear and tear on equipment. Watkins further noted that the Utility worker would inform the shareholder at
the time of the call to allow the shareholder to accept or decline the fee. Kariya questioned the number of
after hour calls received. Watkins noted that the number of calls was minimal over the last year. Bandy
noted that RPMWC and the Pauma Valley Community Services District (“PVCSD”) are considered first
responders. Watkins also noted that Utility Supervisor Eddie Ferrara has been helping shareholders locate
their shut off valve for future reference. Pape noted that an issue might arise if a customer requires multiple
responses. Shinner noted that he is in favor of the educational portion and suggested a document that could
be provided to continue the educational process for shareholders. Knox stated that he is comfortable with
providing shareholders with this support without assessing a fee. After additional discussion the Board opted
to continue providing this after-hours service without a fee to shareholders. Watkins reported that the most
recent reservoir tank dive report indicated some safety and compliance needs at both tanks. Watkins and
Pape are working to address the needs and stay within the budgeted amount. Bandy asked if a new proposal
was received addressing just the compliance updates, Watkins responded yes and noted that it is under
review. Watkins reported that PVCSD made a third unauthorized meter connection into the potable water
system since the last RPMWC meeting. The meter was removed from the shared utility shop by PVCSD
without authorization from RPMWC. RPMWC’s Utility Supervisor went to the meter connection location
and was able to retrieve a meter read for billing purposes. Watkins noted that RPMWC worked with the
PVCSD to accommodate the completion of their planned sewer line maintenance. PVVCSD did not return
the taken meter until a week later; upon evaluation by RPMWC utility staff it was determined that the taken
meter’s read went backwards on the billing meter. Watkins explained that the taken meter is a billing meter
and not a construction meter (which are typically used for contractors needing access to a water supply).
Had PVCSD staff obtained permission, RPMWC staff would have provided them the correct meter type.
Watkins noted that a few hours after the meter was removed from the shared utility shop by PVCSD, PVCSD
General Manager Steinlicht emailed a signed rental agreement for a construction meter by establishing a
temporary water use account. Kariya questioned if PVCSD has been informed of the service area
boundaries. Watkins noted that the agreement outlined the service area. Watkins moved on to note the total
rain received for March was 9.5 inches. Watkins reported that Geoscience was out last week to collect the



Rancho Pauma MWC
Board Meeting Minutes
April 15, 2024

static levels from a majority of the district’s wells. Watkins also noted that Geoscience confirmed the rise
in water levels (15 to 20 feet) at the agriculture wells located near the air park. Bandy noted that the aquifer
levels are rising, and that the basin recovery is very impressive. Watkins lastly noted that the weekly staff
meetings with both Administration and Utility workers have continued, creating an open forum for all
employees to provide input on many matters. Watkins has received positive responses from employees.

a. Operations Report: Watkins announced that the chlorine warnings and alarms upgrade to the
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (“SCADA”) system has been completed. Pape gave a brief
description of how the warnings/alarms are set in the event of a chlorine leak. Watkins noted that all staff
are aware of the upgrade to SCADA and have been trained as to how to properly respond to chlorine
incidents. Watkins also noted that SDG&E scheduled a planned power outage for this past Saturday,
4/13/24, affecting two well sites (7 and 43) and the office building. The Utility staff proactively shut down
the two well sites prior to the power outage to prevent any damage to the equipment. Watkins reported that
the Utility staff are compiling the information needed to submit the Service Line Inventory Report due in
October. The report requires our Utility staff to identify both the company and customer service line
material. Watkins lastly noted that all wells are online and that she is working to schedule the annual
preventative maintenance prior to the start of summer.

b. Account Totals: Watkins presented the Board with the March Account Totals, with a total revenue for
March of $ 54,558. Watkins noted that 15,683 units of water were sold in the month of March, even with
the March rainfall noted earlier in this meeting.

¢. Water Report: Watkins presented the March slippage report noting the year-to-date total for units sold
stands at 162,713 and the year-to-date slippage at 0.53%. Kariya questioned what contributed to the 465
slippage units noted for March. Watkins noted a few items which contributed to the slippage, (1) the PVCSD
fire hydrant usage, (2) service line repairs and (3) water fountain leak along Pauma Valley Drive. Watkins
lastly noted that PVCSD has been invoiced for the recent water usage, based off their estimated usage since
the taken meters read went backwards, and has received payment in full. Bandy suggested using the current
fiscal year’s water report leading up to May to help with the creation of next year’s budget.

5. Financials

a. B/S, R&E, 2-year Comparison as of March 31, 2024: Watkins presented the financial report for March
for review, noting that PVCSD has paid the March shared building expense. Watkins reported a cash total
of $1,418,000 for March. Watkins noted the Accounts Receivable of $73,364 and the Accounts Payable at
$62,993. Watkins pointed out the Prepaid Customer fees of $7,284. Knox noted that the Certificate of
Deposit Accounts are slightly above the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. Watkins proceeded
to review the revenue and expense report, noting the line item for repair and maintenance receiving the
majority of the expense for parts needed in inventory. Watkins also noted the cost associated with the legal
expense for March of $12,316 pertains to the Office Building matter. Watkins reported the current operating
loss of $61,795 as a result of low water sales due to the vast amount of rain received this past winter. Knox
questioned Watkins if any of the current budgeted items were unaccounted for. Watkins noted that the
chlorine alarms recently added to the SCADA system were unaccounted for. Watkins lastly explained
expense accounts have changed as expenses have shifted around with the termination of the Administrative
Services Agreement with PVCSD. Upon a motion by Knox, seconded by Kariya and unanimous vote, the
March financials were approved as presented.

b. Watkins provided a current rate structure highlighting the information regarding the current invoice due
date and delinquent penalties assessed for payments arriving after the due date. Watkins noted the Board
has given discretionary authorization to staff to place a one-time fee reversal of up to $100.00 per calendar
year for accounts receiving finance charges. Bandy stated that this topic is being addressed due to the
account balance due from the Pauma Valley Country Club (“PVCC”). Bandy also noted that RPMWC is
happy to work with the PVCC to finalize a payment agreement. Bandy proceeded to ask Shinner for an
update on the payment status. Shinner asked to recuse himself from the discussion. Kariya stated that the
current policy is effective and should stay in place for all shareholders. After further discussion the Board

2|Page



Rancho Pauma MWC
Board Meeting Minutes
April 15, 2024

10.

decided to not make any changes to the Delinquent Payment Policy. Shinner requested a copy of the account
statement.

RPMWC and PVCSD Update: Bandy reported that RPMWC has a signed Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU”) with the PVCSD. Bandy discussed the terms noted in the MOU, the legal action
is currently considered a stay, essentially agreeing to halt legal action concerning the office building
ownership at this time, the allowance of RPMWC to occupy the former CHP Building for administrative
services, allowing utility the usage of the metal storage building, the storage container, the cinder block
shop building and the chlorine storage building at a monthly fee to PVCSD of $2,500. Bandy also noted
that PVCSD recognizes that the office generator is jointly owned with RPMWC and that RPMWC owns
the SCADA rights and equipment. Bandy noted that at this point RPMWC does not have a signed lease
agreement with PVCSD. Kariya questioned if RPMWC is sharing the Utility Buildings with PVCSD under
the terms of the MOU agreement. Bandy stated that both PVCSD and RPMWC will jointly share the space.
Watkins noted that under the direction of the MOU, the SDG&E electrical meter servicing the Reservoir
Tanks and Pauma Heights Gate has been changed over from PVCSD to RPMWC. Mathews questioned the
hold action pertaining to the lawsuit, what actions need to happen to have the lawsuit resolved. Bandy
discussed the formal process the Board would need to follow. Mathews questioned the next steps to follow
now that the MOU has been established. Bandy stated that the next step should be to have both RPMWC
and PVCSD enter into a lease agreement. Bandy followed that statement by also stating that RPMWC will
not consider dropping the lawsuit until the lease agreement is negotiated. Mathews questioned the write off
process concerning the assets. Bandy noted that P\VCSD is not willing to hire an appraiser at this time.
Mathews noted the foregoing of the building interest. Bandy stated the term of the lease would be for one
year, at that point the Board would need to determine the steps moving forward. Shoaff questioned if there
was back pay due under the lease agreement. Bandy stated yes, the back pay would include the prior months
dating back to December 2023. Knox noted that the $2,500 would allow the usage of the utility shop
facilities for Utility and the separate Administrative office ultimately creating a stable work environment
for all staff. Mathews questioned if RPMWC would spend some money to upgrade the space. Knox noted
that in the near future the Board would discuss a budget for the project.

Upper San Luis Rey Groundwater Management Authority Update (SGMA Update): Bandy reported
that there has been no change concerning the legal action between the JPA and the Indian Water Authority.
Mathews referenced the funds pertaining to the JPA dues, noting that PVCSD has documented in their
accounting the JPA dues (90% due for RPMWC portion) as an investment. Mathews questioned if this truly
is considered an investment and is this topic outlined in the MOU. Bandy noted he will look into this matter.
Bandy proceeded to also note that the final draft report concerning the rate fees will be presented at
tomorrow’s meeting.

Closed Session

a. Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 14305(b)(2) — Potential Litigation, 1 case: The
Board entered into Closed Session at 4:28 pm.

Open Session

a. Action Taken: Reconvened to Open Session at 4:37 pm. The Board has instructed Bandy to continue the
negotiations related to the lease agreement.

Adjournment

a. Regular Meeting Date at 2:00 pm — Monday May 20, 2024. With the next meeting date set and no further
business to discuss, Bandy motioned to adjourn the meeting, motion was seconded by Kariya and upon
unanimous vote the meeting adjourned at 4:40 pm.

Kirne ctharnado

Kim Alvarado, Recording Secretary

3|Page



